ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COMM TTEE
April 3, 2012
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 351

" An Act est abl i shi ng pr ocedur es relating to i ssuance,
suspension, or revocation of certification of police officers by
the police standards council; making certain court service
officers subject to certification by the police standards
council; making confidential certain information that personally
identifies a police officer; relating to requesting or requiring
police officers to subnmt to |lie detector tests; repealing a

provi sion exenpting certain police officers from a prohibition
against requiring certain enployees to submt to lie detector
tests; and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 345

“"An Act relating to regulations adopted by the Departnent of
Adm nistration waiving the comercial nmotor vehicle driving
skills test for certain drivers with mlitary commercial notor
vehi cl e experience."

- MOVED HB 345 OQUT OF COW TTEE
COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO. 53(FIN)
"An Act reestablishing the Al aska Comm ssion on the Status of

Wnen; and relating to the purpose and powers of the Al aska
Human Rel ations Commi ssion.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2012



- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 351

SHORT TITLE: POLI CE OFFI CER PROTECTI ONS/ CERTI FI CATI ON
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER

02/ 22/ 12 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 12 (H) STA, JUD
04/ 03/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

Bl LL: HB 345
SHORT TITLE: WAIVE CDL SKILL TEST FOR CERTAI N VETERANS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SADDLER

02/ 22/ 12 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 22/ 12 (H) TRA, STA

03/ 27/ 12 (H) TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 27/ 12 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 27/ 12 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 28/ 12 (H TRA RPT 3DP 2NR

03/ 28/ 12 (H DP: PETERSEN, GRUENBERG P. W LSON
03/ 28/ 12 (H) NR: JOHNSON, PRUI TT

04/ 03/ 12 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SB 53
SHORT TITLE. COWM SSI ON ON THE STATUS OF WOVEN
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) STA, FIN

03/ 24/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 24/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 29/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 29/ 11 (S) Moved SB 53 Qut of Committee
03/ 29/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 30/ 11 (S) STA RPT 3DP 1DNP 1INR

03/ 30/ 11 (S) DP: W ELECHOWBKI , KOOKESH, PASKVAN
03/ 30/ 11 (S) DNP: G ESSEL

03/ 30/ 11 (S) NR. MEYER

01/ 20/ 12 (S) FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
01/ 20/ 12 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 20/ 12 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 02/ 12 (S) FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 3, 2012



02/ 02/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 53(FIN) Qut of Committee

02/ 02/ 12 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 03/ 12 (S) FIN RPT CS 5DP 2NR SAME TI TLE

02/ 03/ 12 (S) DP:  HOFFMAN, THOMAS, EGAN, MCGU RE,
ELLIS

02/ 03/ 12 (S) NR. STEDMAN, OLSON

02/ 22/ 12 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 22/ 12 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 53( FI N)

02/ 24/ 12 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 24/ 12 (H) STA, FIN

04/ 03/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 351 as sponsor.

DAVE SEXTON, Executive Director

Al aska Police Standards Counci l

Department of Public Safety

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 351.

JOHN SKI DMORE, Division Director

Legal Services Section

Crimnal D vision

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 351.

JAKE METCALF, Executive Director

Public Safety Enployees Association, Inc./Anerican Federation of
State, County, Minicipal Enployees (PSEA/ AFSCVE) Local 803
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 351.

STEVE SORENSON, General Counci l

Cor por at e Board

Public Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on ( PSEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information during the hearing on
HB 351.

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER
Al aska State Legislature

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2012



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 345 as sponsor.

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director

Al aska Trucki ng Associ ation (ATA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 345.

VWH TNEY BREWSTER, Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 345.

CELESTE HODGE, Staff

Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 53 on behalf of Senator Davis,
sponsor.

JUDI TH VAUGHAN- PRATHER, Menber

Board of Directors

Nat i onal Associ ati on of Comm ssi ons on Wnen;

Executive D rector

Mont gonmery County Conmi ssion for Wnen

Mar yl and

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the National
Associ ation of Comm ssions on Wnen during the hearing on HB
345.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:03: 39 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton,
P. WIlson, Petersen, and Lynn were present at the call to order.
Representatives Johansen and Guenberg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 351- POLI CE OFFI CER PROTECTI ONS/ CERTI FI CATI ON

8:04:02 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 351, "An Act establishing procedures relating to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2012



i ssuance, suspension, or revocation of certification of police

officers by the police standards council; naking certain court
service officers subject to certification by the ©police
standards council; nmaking confidential certain information that

personally identifies a police officer; relating to requesting
or requiring police officers to submt to lie detector tests;
repealing a provision exenpting certain police officers from a
prohi bition against requiring certain enployees to submt to lie
detector tests; and providing for an effective date."

8: 05: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HB 351 as sponsor. He stated that the proposed |egislation was
introduced at the request of the Public Safety Enployees
Association (PSEA) and would ensure that police officers are

afforded protection of their civil liberties when faced wth
unproven allegations or threats related to their j ob
per f or mance. He directed attention to a matrix [in the
commttee packet], which shows four general areas wthin the
| egi sl ation: Li censure Inpacts for M sconduct; Definition of
Police Oficer; Admnistration of Lie Detector Tests; and
Confidentiality of Personal |nformation. Currently, he said,

revocation and refusal to issue a permt is left to the
di scretion of the Al aska Police Standards Conmm ssion.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said under HB 351 suspension would be
allowed without a hearing; revocation and refusal to issue a
permt would be allowed after a hearing and decision if the
al l egations were proven by clear and convincing evidence; and
suspension, revocation, or refusal to issue a certificate based
on a disciplinary action that has been reversed or renoved based
on an official proceeding outlined by a collective bargaining
agreenent, personnel rules, or the Adm nistrative Procedure Act
woul d be prohi bited.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said court services officers would be

added to the definition of police officer. Regardi ng the
adm nistration of lie detector tests, he nmentioned [AS
23.10. 037], whi ch currently prohi bits enpl oyers from
adm nistering |lie detector tests to enployees and job

appl i cants. He indicated that HB 351 would repeal a section of
| aw that exenpts police officers from the current prohibition.
He indicated that [job applicants] are not supposed to be part
of that exenption, and he said there is an anendnent prepared to
address that. He stated that under HB 351, personal information

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2012



would renmain confidential unless the officer voluntarily
authorizes its release in witing.

8:13: 37 AM

DAVE  SEXTON, Executive Director, Al aska Police Standards
Council, Departnment of Public Safety (DPS), said under HB 351,
the council would have to follow along with decisions nade at a
hearing, for exanple. Currently, he said, although the counci

takes many sources under advisenent, it is totally independent.
He relayed that when an officer in an agency is termnated, the
hiring agency is required to report that term nation, as well as
report whether the officer resigned under investigation or in

lieu of investigation, and whether the agency recomends
decertification. He said the council takes that information
under advi senent. He said there are a nunber of ways that the

council can start an investigation on its own, for exanple, in
response to reading an article in the newspaper or receiving a
tip from a citizen; however, nost of the tinme the information
received is fromthe hiring agency.

MR. SEXTON enphasi zed that revocation is rare. He rel ayed that
at any particular tinme there are 3,000 officers in Al aska, and
in the last five years the council has revoked only six
certificates, and those were for serious crimnal matters. He
said his staff does the primary investigation, and many tines
decides at that level that there is no reason to revoke. |If the
matter goes to council, the council thoroughly vets the matter
He reenphasized the need for the council to mamintain its
i ndependence. He noted there has been one instance in which the
hearing officer ruled to give the officer his job back, but the
council revoked the certificate anyway. He indicated that the
hearing officer had ruled on a procedural issue, while the
council considered that the behavior of the officer had been
egregi ous and unprofessional in nature.

8:17:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to Section 1 of the
proposed bill, which would anmend AS 18.65.240(c). He said
currently there is no requirenent for a notice and a hearing in
statute. He asked if M. Sexton has received or requested any
| egal opinions regarding the constitutionality of the statute.

8:18: 54 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2012



MR. SEXTON deferred to the Departnent of Law, but said that the
council gives notice.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Sexton if Section 1 of HB 351
would bring the statute into conformance wth existing
regul ati ons.

MR. SEXTON reiterated that currently the council gives notice.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG ref erenced page 1, lines 12, and asked
if current regulations allow the accused to request a hearing

for a suspension as well as for a revocation.

MR. SEXTON answered that currently the council does not have the

authority to suspend; language in Section 1 would give that
authority. He stated that the council supports having that
capability.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked M. Sexton if he would support
allowng the accused officer to request a hearing before a
suspensi on.

MR. SEXTON replied that the council has not yet discussed that
matter.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would explore that issue when
the bill is heard by comnmttees of referral.

8:21:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN directed attention to the fiscal note
prepared by David Sexton, Executive Director, Alaska Police
St andards Council [included in the comm ttee packet].

MR. SEXTON clarified that although his nane is on the fiscal
note, it was actually prepared by his staff.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN observed that it is a zero fiscal note,
but noted |anguage in the analysis portion states that ["DPS
could potentially be required to pay hundreds of thousands of
dollars in back wages to cover the period of tine fromthe date

of termnation until the date of the decision."] He remarked
that it is unusual for HB 351 not to have a referral to the
House Finance Comm ttee. He asked M. Sexton to point to the

section in HB 351 that refers to the possible cost to DPS.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2012



MR. SEXTON answered that the language is in Section 4,
[ paragraph (7)], subparagraph (D), on page 3, lines 5-7, and
woul d add to the definition of police officer:

(D) a person who is designated
under AS 22.20.130 to assist the comm ssioner of
public safety in the execution of the authority and
duty vested by AS 22.20.100 - 22.20. 140;

8:23:57 AM

MR. SEXTON said the reason for the cost is that if court
officers are brought in under the definition of police officer,
then they would have to have the sane training. He said under
HB 351, there are 50-plus court officers who would have to be
trai ned. In response to Representative Johansen, he said the
expense would not be incurred by the Al aska Police Standards
Council, but would be incurred by the departnment. He added:

Part of [the Departnment of] Public Safety has since
started discussions with the union. Everybody's under
the agreement that we can bring the court service
officers in without this change, and this change

was taken out of the Senate version of the bill. So,
we're just doing it admnistratively now, bit by bit,
and that won't have the fiscal inpact. So, ... we're

currently looking at handling it admnistratively and
not in this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he appreciates that information,
but opined that it is irrelevant to the commttee's discussion
of the proposed bill.

8:25:58 AM

MR. SEXTON, in response to Representative P. WIson, explained
the reason the court services officers have been added is to
give them the ability to serve warrants and make arrests; it
increases their abilities.

CHAI R LYNN opined that that is "quite a junp” in abilities.

MR. SEXTON, in response to Chair Lynn, said a court officer
could give a warrant in the court room

MR. SEXTON, in response to Representative P. WIson, said
currently court officers act as bailiffs who maintain order in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2012



the courtroom and transport prisoners. 1In response to a follow
up question, he deferred to the departnent representatives to
speak to how they envision using court services officers under
HB 351.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON surmsed that if court services
officers are going to be asked to do a lot nore, then they are
going to want an increase in pay, which would be reflected in
the fiscal note.

MR. SEXTON said current discussions with the union have elicited
an agreenent that a pay rai se would not happen.

8:28: 29 AM

MR. SEXTON, in response to the chair, said under HB 351 court
services officers would be, in theory, fully trained police
of ficers; however, he said he cannot speak to how DPS woul d use
t hem In response to a followup question, he said he does not
know the current pay difference between police officers and
court services officers.

8:29:12 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if the courts have expressed a need
for their court services officers to have an increase in

abilities.

MR. SEXTON answered not that he is aware.

8.29:35 AM

MR. SEXTON, in response to a series of questions from
Representative Seaton, confirmed that the Alaska Police
Standards Council bases its conclusions on the Adm nistrative
Procedures Act, which requires preponderance of evidence. He
offered his understanding that under HB 351 the council would
need to "follow decisions nade outside to hearings.” He relayed

that if the standard for proving allegations is changed to clear
and convincing evidence, then the assunption is that a higher
burden of proof will be required. He said he does not know how
that will "shake out," but said it would separate the counci
from the four dozen boards and commssions that follow the
Adm ni strative Procedures Act.

8:32: 07 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 3, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked who would do the extra work in
reaching the higher burden of proof if the standard for proving
al l egations is raised.

MR, SEXTON suggested that the council may already be finding
cl ear and convincing evidence. He said the council is conprised
of 13 nenbers, including law enforcenment and corrections
adm nistrators, citizens at l|arge, and union nenbers, all of
whom take their jobs seriously. He reiterated that out of 200
cases there have been only six revocations. He stated that the
council takes only serious cases. He said there would be no
nore staff to address finding clear and convincing evidence, so
t he burden would fall on existing staff.

8:34:24 AM

MR, SEXTON, in response to Representative G uenberg, offered his
under standi ng that clear and convincing evidence nmust be used in
order to disbar an attorney at law. In response to a follow up
guestion, he said he has not heard of any challenges as to the
constitutionality of requiring only preponderance of evidence in
matters related to the council.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his intent to find out nore on
the matter.

8:36:18 AM

JOHN  SKI DMORE, Division Director, Legal Services Section

Crimnal Division, Departnent of Law (DOL), offered his persona

background. He stated that in the role of supervisor to special
prosecutions, he was responsible for reviewing all cases that
involved officers and would address all of ficer-invol ved
shootings. He said he also reviewed conflict cases. He related
that in his current position, he acts as the |egal advisor for
the Al aska Police Standards Council. Regarding HB 351, he said
he woul d address the topic of |icensure inpacts, as shown on the
aforenmenti oned matri x.

8:38:42 AM

MR. SKIDMORE directed attention to Section 1, on page 1, line 9,
t hrough page 2, line 5 of HB 351. He offered his understandi ng
that Section 1 would repeal AS 18.65.240(c), which is the
provision that gives the council the ability to revoke the
license or certificate of a |aw enforcement officer. He said
"it" does not specify that "we" would follow the Adm nistrative

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 3, 2012



Procedures Act; however, he noted that within the Act, which is
referenced on page 2, line 1, as AS 44.62.330 - 44.62.630, it is
specifically stated that the Alaska Police Standards Counci

must follow the Act. He said under the Act there is a hearing
to which anyone is entitled and during which the hearing officer
makes findings of fact and recomendations to the council. The
council then exercises its own independent judgnent as to

whet her to follow the recommendati on of the hearing officer. He
stated that this is the sane procedure as is followed by the
Al aska Bar Association, but the association is not controlled by
the Adm ni strative Procedures Act.

8:41: 47 AM

MR. SKIDMORE stated that under HB 351, the discretion of the
council would be renoved, which he opined is not a good idea.
He said the 13 people serving on the council decide whether or
not [the officer in question] has fallen below the m ninum | eve

of the expectations for the standards that are set for officers
across the state. Under HB 351, the person making those
decisions wuld be a hearing officer who is not in [|aw
enforcement, and the council would not be able to revoke a
license unless the hearing officer had first nmade that deci sion.
He stated that society is built on trust that people will follow
the rules of the state or be held accountable by |aw enforcenent
officers. He tal ked about the inportance of being able to trust
| aw enforcenment officers, because wthout that trust the whole
system falters. He said that is why the decision of who is and
is not an appropriate officer should remain within the council.

8:44: 21 AM

MR. SKIDMORE stated that there are also issues with how [ HB 351]
would affect the crimnal justice systems function. For
exanple, he said as a prosecutor he is obligated to disclose to
the defense whether an officer is deenmed to be dishonest or
there are problens with his/her credibility. The defense wll
ask "those questions” during the trial, the jury will judge the
officer, and judges may not be willing to issue a search warrant
to the officer in the future. Current law ensures that only
trustworthy officers are certified, and if [the council] finds
one that is not trustworthy, it is invested wth the power to
remove him her. The proposed legislation would elimnate that
ability and give the decision to a sole hearing officer. He
asked the conmttee not to let that happen.

8:45:52 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 3, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked what the qualifications are for
the single hearing officer to which M. Skidnore referred.

MR. SKIDMORE answered that the specifics are included in the
Adm ni strative Procedures Act.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN offered his understanding that M.
Skidnore's testinony inplies that [a hearing officer] is not the
right person to [make those decisions], and he said he would
like to know why.

MR. SKIDMORE said that while he cannot relate how [hearing
officers] are selected, part of his concern is that the person
selected is not likely to be a nenber of the |aw enforcenment
community. Furthernore, he reiterated his concern in giving the
decision making to one individual rather than to a group of
i ndi vidual s that can bring different points of view

8:49: 15 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked if the reason for HB 351 is
because sonmeone | ost his/her |license and is disgruntled.

8:50:11 AM

MR. SKIDMORE nentioned recent court cases, but said he does not
know if those cases were the instigators of the proposed
| egi sl ation. In the cases, he said, even though the court
determned that the officers had engaged in egregi ous conduct,
because the departnment had a history of not firing those

officers in the past who engaged in simlar conduct, it was
determined that it would not be fair to fire the officers in
guesti on. He directed attention to Section 3, which read as
fol | ows:

*Sec.3. AS 18.65 is anended by adding a new
section to read:

Sec. 18.65. 244, Def erence to prior
resol utions. Notwi t hstanding AS 18. 65. 240, t he
council may not suspend, revoke, or refuse to issue a
certificate to a police officer based on a
disciplinary action against the police officer that
has been reversed or renoved as the result of

(1) an arbitration or grievance
proceedi ng under a coll ective bargai ni ng agreenent;

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 3, 2012



(2) a grievance, hearing, or other
proceedi ng under applicable personnel rules; or

(3) a proceeding under AS 44.62
(Adm ni strative Procedure Act).

MR. SKIDMORE said lines 10-19 state that the council would al so
be bound by what happens in enploynment |aw rather than being
allowed to exercise its own discretion and judgnent. He offered
further details.

MR. SKIDMORE tal ked about another case, which involved sexua
harassnment and di shonesty, both of which are of concern to the
counci | . He said there was no question that the harassnent and
di shonesty occurred; the question was what the appropriate
sanction would be. He said the answer is conpletely different
depending on  whet her the focus iIs on enploynment or
certification. He offered an exanple, in which a | awer engages
in crimnal conduct. He said the lawer's enployer nmay not
ultimately be able to fire the lawer, but if the bar decides to
revoke the lawer's |icense, then he/she would not be able to
practice |aw anyway. He said he thinks the view is that if
l[itigation results in soneone being able to remain enployed,
then it is unfair that his/her |icense could then be taken away.
He said he understands that viewpoint but respectfully

di sagrees, because the two processes are separate: one is
enployment law, while the other is a statewide standard - the
m ni mum of what should apply. He said there are boards and

councils across the state to uphold those standards. He said he
has worked in places in the state where he is unsure whether
that the litigation that would be involved in enploynent issues

would be "the sane level of litigation." He stated, "Even if
it's dealing with APD or the Al aska State Troopers, | don't even
want to rely on that, because the council conducts its own

i ndependent investigation and reaches its own concl usions, and |
don't think it should have to be bound by what occurs in the
enpl oynment litigation context."

8:57:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN offered his understanding that M.
Ski dnmore had said that Section 3 would Iimt the council. He
stated his belief that the legislature confirns each nenber [of
the council].

MR SKIDMORE confirmed that is correct.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 3, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE = JOHANSEN  vent ured t hat t he | egi slature's
confirmation of nenbers is a good indication they are capable.
He asked if M. Skidnore is saying that Section 3 would limt
the information that [the council] would have to make deci si ons.

MR SKI DMORE answered no. He clarified that Section 3 would

require the council to follow along with what happens in an
arbitration or a grievance under collective bargaining. He
added, "So, it's not that it limts the information they have

it just [Iimts] what they can do."
8:59: 31 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON said she has a problem with that,
because there are times when she has felt the outcome of a
col l ective bargaining agreenent was unsafe. She offered an
exanpl e of a school district that could not do something about a
person who was saying and doing things that were "not good for
students.” She opined that the current ability of the council
to override a decision is good.

MR. SKIDMORE noted that teachers are governed under the
Adm ni strative Procedures Act; therefore, the exanple offered by
Representative P. Wlson is right on point.

9:01: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked M. Skidnore to clarify if what he
is saying is that this could | ead down a slippery sl ope.

MR. SKIDMORE responded that he could not have said it nore
clearly than that.

9:02: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER referred to the m ssion statenent of the
council, which read as fol |l ows:

To produce and maintain a highly trained and
positively notivated professional, capable of neeting
contenporary | aw enforcenent standards of performance.

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLER said M. Skidnore's testinobny is

convi nci ng; however, he noted that the mssion statenent has no
mention of maintaining the public's trust.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 3, 2012



MR. SKIDMORE responded that he equates "professional”" wth
sonmeone in whom the public can place its trust. He said that
his experience as head of special prosecutions brought him to
consi der whether individuals who hold positions of public trust
shoul d be sentenced for crimnal conduct beyond what the average

citizen woul d. He stated his belief that the answer to that
guestion is yes, because it is the violation of public trust
that is so inportant. He offered an exanple. He said he

believes that the wvast mgjority of people working in [|aw
enforcenment right now are professionals.

9:05:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to the words "reversed
or rempved" in Section 3, and he asked for clarification as to
the difference between them

9:07: 01 AM

MR. SKIDMORE answered that a reversal is the ultinmate decision
He said he is not certain of the neaning of renpved in the bil
| anguage, but ventured that it may nmean the renoval from a
personnel file any nmention of an allegation. He said the
council already takes into consideration what has happened in an
enpl oynment context, but should not be bound by that information.

9:08: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN, in response to Representative Keller's
previous remark, proffered that mssion statements are often
witten by a group of people trying to figure out a way to
present the actual statutory requirenents. He read an excerpt
of subsection (a) of AS 18.65.240, which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

Sec. 18.65.240. Standards.

(a) A person nmay nhot be appointed as a police
officer, except on a probationary basis, unless the
person (1) has satisfactorily conpleted a basic
program of police training approved by the council,
which includes at Jleast 12 hours of instruction
regarding donestic violence as defi ned in AS
18.66.990, and (2) possesses other qualifications the
council has established for the enploynent of police
officers, including mninmum age, education, physical
and nental standards, citizenship, noral character,
and experience. The council shall prescribe the neans

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 3, 2012



of presenting evidence of fulfillment of these
requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE ~ JOHANSEN  sai d, "It's not in the mssion
statenment; it's in the statute that this body at sonme point over
time has passed. And | think that nmay be the basis for sonme of
the testinony that we've had today."

9:09: 49 AM

JAKE METCALF, Executive Director, Public Safety Enployees
Associ ati on, I nc./ Anerican Federati on of St at e, Count vy,
Muni ci pal Enpl oyees (PSEA/ AFSCVE) Local 803, said PSEA/ AFSCME
Local 803 represents state troopers, court services officers,
airport police in Anchorage and Fairbanks, and police officers
in Ketchi kan, Sitka, Juneau, Fairbanks, Soldotna, Dutch Harbor,
and Dillingham He relayed that prior to his current position,
he served as an assistant attorney general and attorney general
in Bethel, and as a prosecutor in the Ofice of Special
Prosecutions, where he was a colleague of M. Skidnore. He
said as a prosecutor he dealt wth msconduct by police
of ficers.

MR. METCALF stated that PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803 believes that the
APSC has a job that is inportant to the people PSEA/ AFSCME Local
803 represents and the job that those people do. He said
PSEA/ AFSCVE Local 803 does not want to take away any of APSC s
power s. He said PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803 helps police officers
surrender their certificates when it is time to do so, but
believes that the process should be a fair one. He stated that
a police officer who has had his/her certificate revoked cannot
wor k anywhere else in the country. He said this is not wong
for those who are bad police officers, but for those who have
been accused unfairly, without the full facts, it can ruin their
lives. He stated that PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803 does not disagree
with testinony stating that there have not been nmany cases of
revocation, but wants to ensure that the process is fair. He
said the proposals made in HB 351 would nmake the process fair
and would not take away anything from the APSC, but would
actually give the council nore tools.

9:13: 37 AM

MR. METCALF, regarding licensure inpacts of msconduct, said
PSEA/ AFSCVE Local 803 has asked that suspension be allowed in
t he process. Currently the council has no power to suspend a
license; all it can do is revoke or grant a certificate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 3, 2012



MR. METCALF referred to [paragraph (3), in Section 1], on page

2, which read: "(3) followng the filing of a statenment of
i ssues, hearing, and decision under AS 44.62.330 - 44.62.630,
refuse to issue a certificate to an applicant, if refusal 1is
consistent with the decision.” He said PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803

thinks that the person who is com ng under revocation should be
given notice, that there should be a hearing, and that the rules
of the APA should be followed. He said PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803
does not believe that is the case currently. He gave an
exanpl e, in which soneone was given the opportunity to surrender
hi s/ her license, but had not been given notice as to the reason
for decertification. He said PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803 hopes that
HB 351 will lay out groundwork for the council for the fair
treat ment of people.

MR. METCALF referred to Section 2, which would require the

council to "prove the conduct alleged in the accusation or
statenent of 1issues by clear and convincing evidence." He
recollected that M. Skidnore had said that the bar association
is outside of the Adm nistrative Procedure Act. He said the Act
addresses consideration of the preponderance of evidence. He

said that is the |owest burden of proof that the Act requires;
however, an agency is allowed to use a higher burden of proof
under the Act. M. Metcalf listed the three burdens of proof:
preponderance of the evidence, clear and convincing evidence,
and beyond a reasonabl e doubt. The latter is used in crimnal
trial, while clear and convincing is used in enploynent trial
He said PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803's "changes”™ would protect al
police officers, not just those wth collective bargaining
agr eenent s.

9:18: 19 AM

MR. METCALF stated that collective bargai ning agreenments include
cl auses that make the decisions of the arbitrator binding on the
enpl oyee and the enpl oyer. He said the |anguage in PSEA/ AFSCME
Local 803's agreenent with the state troopers has existed for
over 30 years. He said there is a standard that is followed.
If there is an issue regarding enploynent, a hearing is held, in
whi ch each side can present relevant evidence. The arbitrator
is trained in enployment matters and nmakes the binding deci sion.
He said in recent cases the state has not |iked the binding
decision and the matter has been brought to the Alaska State
Superior Court and the Al aska Suprene Court. He nentioned cases
where both courts decided that the arbitrator had made the right
deci si on. Further, a hearing officer decided that the enployee

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 3, 2012



in question does not deserve to have his/her certificate
revoked. M. Metcalf indicated that six years may have gone by,
during which the officer in question has not worked, and that
officer may think the case has been settled, but the APSC then
overturns all the decisions. He said PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803
thinks that the council should pay attention to the decisions of
both parties, the Al aska Supreme and Superior Court judges, and
t he hearing officer chosen by both parties.

MR. METCALF said PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803 thinks Section 1-3 would
make the system fairer and give the council nore tools, wthout
pl acing burden or taking away any of the standards currently
outlined in statute.

9:23: 13 AM

MR. METCALF, regarding Section 3 and the deference of prior
resol utions, said PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803 wants the council to pay
attention to arbitration, per sonnel rul es, and court
arbitration, but it also believes that the council can nake an
i ndependent deci si on based on new facts.

9:26: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what the purpose is for suspending a
certificate.

9:26: 32 AM

MR. METCALF answered that one purpose nmay be to use a suspension
until such time as the «council nmakes a decision on a
term nation. It makes it possible for the officer in question

to deal with a problem for exanple drug addiction, before being
al l owed to conme back to work.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that M. Metcalf
had noted instances where the APA has not been followed, and he
asked M. Metcalf if he has gone to court to address that issue.

MR. METCALF said there are cases in process. He said |ast week
PSEA/ AFSCVE Local 803 received letters from APSC regarding the
actions that the council is taking. He said PSEA/ AFSCME Loca
803 woul d rather have statutes that set up a fair systemthat is
clearly defined for APSC, with full disclosure of the actions
bei ng taken against the officer involved, and wth due process
f ol | owed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 3, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is confused, because M. Metcalf
is asking for statute to be changed when the APA is already in
statute and includes full hearing requirenents.

MR. METCALF explained that PSEA/ AFSCME Local 803 is not asking
to nove away from the APA,  but is asking that the Act be
foll owed and that the APSC be given guidance as to how to foll ow
it correctly.

9:29:55 AM

STEVE SORENSON, General Council, Corporate Board, Public Service
Enpl oyees Association (PSEA), stated that the intent of the
proposed legislation is to nake sure the council follows the
APA. Regarding the information provided by M. Mtcalf, he
stated that back in Decenber, the council voted in executive
session to take away soneone's certificate, but wthout notice
to the officer and w thout due process. Echoing M. Metcalfe's
testinmony, he outlined the process that should have occurred

He said the council should make the determ nation whether to
revoke a certificate at the end of the process, not at the
begi nni ng.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that before the next hearing he would
like to hear a discussion of the APA and how it falls within an
occupational |licensing board and whether that involves an
adm ni strative hearing officer or is an enploynent action.

9:33:49 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON, regarding the aforenmentioned cases,
said she cannot inagine that the officers had no clue they had
done sonet hing big enough to result in council action.

MR. SORENSON confirmed that in none of the cases were the
officers informed of the council's action in Decenber; it was
not until March that any of them were notified.

9: 38: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN referred to |language in Section 1 that
would allow the council to suspend an officer's certificate if
that officer did not neet the standards [under AS 18.65.240(c)].
He asked if the reason for the suspension would be to allow tine
for due process.

9: 38: 48 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 3, 2012



MR. METCALF said he thinks that is one reason. Anot her, he
said, is to give a mddle ground between granting and revoking a
i cense.

9:39: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if the suspension could be used as
a formof punishnent.

9: 39: 38 AM

MR. METCALF answered yes, and he reiterated his previous exanple
of an officer that nmay have a substance abuse issue.

9: 39: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if PSEA would still support HB 351
if the language in Section 1 regarding suspension were the only
| anguage left in the bill.

9:40: 26 AM

MR. SORENSEN answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN opined that saying the council is not
following the APA is a serious allegation. He asked if PSEA
instigated the proposed legislation "as a result of this case."
9:41:57 AM

MR. METCALF said he respects people on "the board” but thinks
that current statutes have no direction, and that |[|ack of
direction adversely affects police officers.

9:42:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said in future he wants to know what the
pr ocedure IS t hat woul d pr event recertification after
revocati on.

[HB 351 was hel d over. ]

HB 345-WAI VE CDL SKILL TEST FOR CERTAI N VETERANS

9:43: 51 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 3, 2012



CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 345, "An Act relating to regulations adopted by the
Department of Admnistration waiving the conmmerci al not or
vehicle driving skills test for certain drivers with mlitary
commer ci al notor vehicle experience."

9:44:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAN SADDLER, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HB 345 as sponsor. He paraphrased the sponsor statenent, which
read as follows [original punctuation provided]:

HB 345 allows the state of Alaska to waive the
commercial driver’'s license road skills test for
Alaska mlitary personnel who earned their driving
experience operating commercial -grade vehicles in the
armed services.

The nodern U S mlitary is a highly nobile force,
depending on skilled drivers operating a w de range of
vehicles, under often harsh conditions. |[|npending
budget cuts and troop reductions nean thousands of
Al aska service nenbers, including active duty, Guard
and Reserve, will soon be hanging up their uniforns to
seek civilian jobs.

In Al aska, where many trades and occupations involve
transportation of goods and people across challenging
| andscapes, a comercial driver’s license (CDL) is a
val uabl e credential that can offer a significant boost
to those seeking to enter the civilian work force,
whether in tourism comercial fishing, construction

oil field services or other industries.

HB 345 seeks to help returning Alaska mlitary
per sonnel find good | obs, and to help Al aska
busi nesses find qualified and credential ed enpl oyees

by acknowl edging that many mlitary drivers already
possess the skills they need to be safe, productive
civilian drivers.

HB 345 directs the Departnment of Administration to
adopt regulations in accordance wth Federal ©Motor
Carrier Safety Adm nistration guidelines, allow ng the
Al aska Division of Mtor Vehicles to waive the road
test in accordance with federal |aw

To be eligible for a waiver, a driver nust have spent
the last two years or nore driving the kind of
equi pnent he expects to use in a civilian job, nust
have worked in the past 90 days as a mlitary driver
and nust neet federal exenption requirenents outlined

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 3, 2012



in CFR 383.77. Hel/she also cannot have ever had any
| icense suspended or revoked, had nore than one m nor
traffic violation, been convicted of any driving
of fense involving drugs or alcohol, or been convicted
for any serious traffic violation involving an
acci dent.

Al askans who honed their driving skills while in
service to our nation deserve to have that experience
val i dated and honored in the civilian world. HB 345 is
an inportant tool to help them get the credentials
they need to land good civilian jobs, and to help
Al aska enpl oyers hire skilled and notivated enpl oyees.

9:46: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER, in response to Representative Keller,
said those who would qualify under HB 345 would have to have
operated a commercial vehicle while in the mlitary.

9:47:16 AM

AVES THOWPSON, Executive Director, Alaska Trucking Association
(ATA), testified in support of HB 345. He stated that one of
the pressing problens in the industry today is finding qualified
commercial vehicle drivers. He said a lot of tinme is used in
trai ni ng. He related that in-depth know edge is needed by
drivers of commercial vehicles. He said sonetines the operating
skills of comercial vehicle drivers can save the |ives of those
drivers or the lives of others. He stated that the industry
supports the return of veterans and wel conmes the opportunity to
do sonmething that would both support them and the industry. He
urged the committee to support the proposed | egislation.

9:49: 12 AM

VWH TNEY  BREWSTER, Director, Division of Mot or  Vehi cl es,
Departnment of Admnistration, noted that the Federal WMbdtor
Carrier Safety Adm ni stration ( FMCSA) finalized federa
regul ations which allow states to adopt prograns that substitute
the required [commercial] driving skills for those that have
recent mlitary conmercial notor vehicle experience. She said
the division would build into its regulation the requirenents
under HB 345, which are: the individual is or was within the
| ast 90 days regularly enployed in a mlitary position requiring
operation of a commercial notor vehicle; and the individual was
al so operating a vehicle representative of the commercial notor
vehicle the driver applicant operates or expects to operate for

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 3, 2012



at least the two years immediately preceding discharge from the
mlitary. She said the regulation the division promnulgates
woul d include the requirenents under [federal regulation] 49 CFR
383.77. She said there are many states that have inplenented a

simlar program i ncl udi ng Washi ngt on, Pennsyl vani a,
Connecticut, New York, and Nevada. She told the commttee that
FMCSA is urging states to adopt programs that wll allow for

this waiver and is working closely with the U S. Departnent of
Defense (DoD), as well as with the American Association of Mtor
Vehicle Admi nistrators (AAWA), to nake inplenentation of this
program easi er across the country.

9:51: 21 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:51:29 AM

M5. BREWSTER, in response to Representative Seaton, confirned
that the division has the authority to adopt the aforenentioned
regul ati ons.

9:52:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he worked with a crew of truck
drivers in past, and the best drivers were those who had driven
in the mlitary. He thanked the bill sponsor for bringing
forward HB 345.

9:52: 51 AM

CHAI R LYNN remarked upon the thoroughness of mlitary technica
school s.

9:53: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER relayed that he used to run a truck
driving school and has a commercial driver's |icense.

9:53: 30 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 345 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

notes. There being no objection, HB 345 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- April 3, 2012



SB  53-COMM SSI ON ON THE STATUS OF WOMVEN

9:53: 50 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was CS FOR
SENATE BILL NO 53(FIN), "An Act reestablishing the Al aska
Comm ssion on the Status of Wnen; and relating to the purpose
and powers of the Al aska Human Rel ati ons Commi ssion. "

9:54:11 AM

CELESTE HODGE, Staff, Senator Bettye Davis, Alaska State
Legislature, presented SB 53 on behalf of Senator Davis,
sponsor. She stated that SB 53 would reestablish the Al aska
Comm ssion on the Status of Wnen, a nine-nmenber body devoted to
inmproving the status of wonen in Al aska, established in 1978,
renewed and renamed The Alaska Wnen's Commission in 1983, and
absorbed into the Alaska Human Rel ations Commi ssion along with

Al aska Comm ssion on Children and Youth. She said the Al aska
Hurman Rel ations Conmmi ssion still exists in statute, but was
never funded and was declared inactive in 1996. She conti nued

as foll ows:

Staggering statistics for wonen in Al aska show the
need to establish the Alaska Wnmen's Conmmssion to
focus on a broad and diverse cross-section of issues
effecting wonen. ... Alaska continues to have the
hi ghest rates of sexual assault and donestic violence
in the nation and historically wonmen are nore |ikely
to be poor than nen. Poverty rates of wunmarried
femal e householders wth <children are particularly
high and have ... consistently been two or three tines
as high as overall male and femamle poverty rates in
1996.

Survey data conpiled by the American Conmunity Survey
shows that of 26,518 famlies in Alaska with a female
head of househol d, 22.6 percent l|live below the poverty
| evel . The gender wage gap persists in Al aska and
across a w de spectrum of occupations and industries.
In 2009, according to [the Al aska Departnent of Labor
& Workforce Developnent], Al aska wonen on average
earned only 66.6 percent of what nen earned. And
although nore wonmen than nmen in Alaska hold a
bachelor's degree or higher, data shows that nen's
medi an annual earnings are higher in every educational
| evel .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 3, 2012



Alaskan ... wonen, in particular wonen of color,
experience health care disparities, and wonen |iving
in rural Al aska have worse than average disparities on
access and utilization of services. These statistics
speak for thenselves and fully justify the need to
reestablish the Al aska Wnen's Conm ssi on.

9:57: 08 AM

JUDI TH VAUGHAN- PRATHER, Menber, Board of Directors, National
Associ ation of Comm ssions on \Wnen; Executive Director,
Mont gomery County Comm ssion for Wnen, testified on behalf of
the National Association of Comm ssions on Wnen (NACW. She
said NACW commends the legislature for addressing the issue and
Senator Davis for sponsoring SB 53. She said NACW urges the
passage of SB 53, which would reestablish the Al aska Comm ssion
on the Status of Wnen and provide both staffing and sone
funding to ensure the commssion is able to carry out its
mandat e.

M5. VAUGHAN- PRATHER relayed that there are close to 200
conmi ssions for wonen and conmm ssions on the status of wonen
around the country at the state, county, and city I|evel. She
said the commssions are distinguished from other advocacy
organi zations and each conmission is established by the
jurisdiction it serves as an advisory board to the governnent of
that state or county. She said conm ssions for wonen are the
governments' way of assuring that the needs of wonmen are
identified and addressed in bodies that are largely constituted
by nen. She related having found out that in the Alaska State
Legislature, only 9 of the 40 nenbers of the House are wonen and
only 3 of the nenbers of the Senate are wonen, despite the fact
t hat of Al aska's t ot al nunber of femal es constitute
approximately 48 of the general population of the state.

M5. VAUGHAN- PRATHER said that when the voice of alnost half the
popul ation is omtted from the discussion, inportant and often
critical inplications can exist. For exanple, she said until
this year car manufacturers and the regulating agencies used
crash test dunmies that were the size and weight of an average

man; it never occurred to them to design vehicle safety
standards that would protect the other half of the popul ation.
She said there is docunentation, including the sponsor's
st at enent which highlights other inequities that occur

nati onwi de.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 3, 2012



M5. VAUGHAN- PRATHER said SB 53 proposes to create an advisory
board with a staff of three at a total cost of $515,400 in
fiscal year 2013 (FY13), wth the cost decreasing in future
years after the start-up costs are elimnated. The [initial]
budget represents an investnent of only about $1.50 per fenale
in Al aska. She posited, "Surely that would be noney well spent
and a tiny cost to pay to ensure that their very real needs are
not overl ooked." She stated that NACW urges the conmttee to
pass SB 53, and she offered the support of its collective
menber shi p and experience to help the staff and conmm ssioners of
the Al aska comm ssion, so that they can "begin again providing
i nforned, bal anced, and val uable advice to the governnent and to
t he people of your state.”

10: 01: 38 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that SB 53 was hel d over.

10: 02: 35 AM

ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:02
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 3, 2012



